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Chairman’s Letter

Dear Shareholder,

wo acquisitions of importance defined vour

Group’s strategic focus in 1996, a vear in

which we concentrated on the development of
our core businesses, taking advantage of the
improvement of our markets, and of the strength of our products. The
acquisitions, Walter Foster , a publisher of how-to books for beginning
artists, and Dresign Eve, publishers of instructional book and component
kits, both broaden our product ranges in areas where we are already strong,
and, for the first time, take us into a new distribution channel for books in
the United States. As a result of these acquisitions, book publishing now
accounts for three-fourths of Group revenues, the balance being other
publishing and publishing services,

T am pleased to report, once again, record results. For the vear ended
December 31, 1996, sales climbed to £80.6 million (1995: £66.5 million}
and operating profit to £9.13 million (1995: £7.85 million). Afeer
increased interest charges to fund the acquisitions, profit hefore tax was
£7.8  million (1995: £7.0 million), and eamings per share were 26.5p
(1995: 24.8p).

I am delighted with these results overall. Thev do not quite reach the
expectations we had earlier in the yvear, and this is accounted for by two
factors: the rise in the value of sterling, over which we had no control, and

late bottlenecks in manufacturing, These affected deliveries of orders
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Sales in the US -
our biggest placed by customers
market - continue [0 ourinternational co-
to grow strongly

edition books, particularly
from our fastngmwing and

innovative children’s hook di\'isi()n: But
for these two factors, which we estimate accounted for £500,000 of
anticipated profits, we would have exceeded our internal expectations,
Continuing prudent management of our foreign exchange

exposure, which is integral to our operations as an . .
P ’ g 1 i WWe publish most of our

international publishing group, limited the impact of adul; books for clearly
sterling’s rise, but the Jast quarter of the year is our busiest identifled special interest

and some effects could not be avoided. Two-thirds of the audiences such as home

L . . cooks, woodworkers,
Group's sales now arise in, or are consigned to, the United

crafiers, and amateur
States. We have long recognized that the United States artises.

dollar is our principal trading currency, and have matched

our dollar sales with dollar purchases, and our borrowings with our asset

bases, as much as possible to limit the impact of currency Buctuations on

our commercial decisions. Of course, we cannot be immune to sudden or
short-term changes, nor can we avoid the impact of translation differcnces

upon reported results.

The increased demand for our co-edition books created new
challenges, particularly with the scheduting of components, and we failed to
resohe them satisfactorily before vear-cnd. Some of the problems were
new to us, and we were not swilt enough in our response to build up the
sourcing skills we need. Our children’s titles, in particular, are ambitious
and innovative. Qutsourced componenfs, essential to most of the titles
published in our children’s book division, present very different production
issues when compared to straightforward printing. We have had to work
out our own solutions, and to train our staff in new ways. This is time-

consuming and we have our setbacks, but the market response to our
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publications is unambiguously positive and we shalt benefit in future vears
from this learning experience. Tt was unfortunate that the major delivery
season for our children’s titles was the last quarter of the vear because this
also had the effect of increasing the impact of sterling's rise in value,

Approximately half of 1996’ revenues were in international co-edition
book publishing. This is the part of your Group's business sith the langest
forward order book. Co-cdition book publishing sales grew by 32%,
follm\'ing the Junce acquisition of Design Eve, whose sales are heavily
weighted to the second half of the vear, Continuing business grew by 124,
despite an adverse currency impact of 49 and the “oss™ of a further 3% of
sales.

[t was, then, a very buovant vear, with sales far outstripping inflation
and the growth of sales in the book industry as a whole, \We saw a steadly
improvement in sales in some markets, notably Australasia, where we
increased our own sales presence, and strong growth in a number of other
markets, particularly in Portugal, France, Germany, and the United States,

The strength of American sales was verv gratif\ing, as the United States is
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our largest single market, Our experience contrasted strongly with that of EE——

many domestic American publishers.

- Our growth is
Altogether then, our co-edition book publishing business, with sales of g
approximately £40 million in 1996, and operating profits of £5.9 million, both organic and

is in good shape. Consistent with past experience, income from reprints
representéd about half of our sales, highlighting once again, the quality of
our publishing programs, with their strong focus on books of enduring
interest.

Qur other book publishing businesses, inclu(ling Walter Foster,
acquired at the end of February, had sales of approximately £25 million,
before eliminating gru“"ing inter-group trading. The star performer in 1996

was our promotional publishing subsidiary in New York,

Book Sales, which improved both its sales and
profit margins. In local carrency terms, sales
increased by 239% and the operating margin rose to
8.9%, from 6% in 1993, This stellar performance
offset the impact of dlectining
margins at our directorv

publisher, Broughton Hall,

T AT R P Y AT T A - T L g I3 L Ram e sy

by acquisition

The aequisitions of Walter
Foster Publ’i_rhm‘g and
Design Eve are central 10
our Su'dle‘(ﬂ‘ quroll'fng our
business, Ther
complement Quarto’s
exixting xrrcn‘(]rh.v in
producing art inseruction,
und added value. books
and offer ¢ wav in 1o new

sectors of the murkets.
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which, in an effort to joint-venture projects with other group operating
unsits, lost its tight focus on the core business. It produces its revenues from
tc]vnmrkuting. This is an intensely concentrated sales approach, requiring
rigorous huurly and dailv monitoring and responsiveness. Regretfully, our
management resources were stretched too thin to allow attention to be
diverted to other apportunities for growth. The result was that Broughton
Hall's margin dipped from 17% to 99, giving the division as a whole an
operating margin of 8.9% Given that the largest unit operates at a l'CI<1ti\'C]}'
leny margin, and that the volume of inter group sales continues to grow
and to be important 1o cach unit, we are very pleased with the overall
result.

A further £10 million of sales was achieved in our other pub]ishing
businesses, which include magazine publishing in the UK, and art print
pubiishing in Australia and the United States, Our

results for 1996 incorporate the costs of writing off one BOOkS are a
unsuccessful magazine launch @nd one aborted launch Powerful Way of

in the UK, and an unexpectedly poor result in Australia

-
in our art print pul)lishing business, where the hoped- Conveylng
Ll L]
for revival in sales, fol]ou'ing the March lnformatlon and
general election, did not ins truction

materialize. [ am pleased
that we resurrected our
Australian pub]ishing program, bringing more
new images to market, but we were over-
optimistic about the buovaney of the

retai] sector, In the United States,

;
. IEEE——

Taking the pulse of our
audiences is the way e
keep abead. Qur decisions
on whae to publish are
market-driven and we rely
on our guthors, editors,
designers, and co-
publishers to monitor
markets and 10 identifi
subjects of enduring

interest,

e




We have improved
the monitoring

of our widely spread
operations

results were mived. Scafa improved its sales and profits, with
Frontline moving in the opposite direction. The overall operating
margin was just uncler 109%,

The publishing services division, operating in the UK, Hong

Kong, and Singapore, had sales of £14.4 million in 1996, £4.4 e

million of sales were inter group, highlighting some of the
division’s importance as a supplier to the book publishing businesses. Poor
results from our UK vperations were, as in 1993, a drag on profits, but we
have now closed the chapter on photographic processing, and hope that a

t P 3 [

more l)u())'ant cconomy in the UK, with a changing retail sector, and our

Our I‘e.’.l‘tlrljnd SUSEOMS i

more focused management, will give us improved results and the Aexibilit: speeding up the provision
of usefad financial and

to consider the way forward for the division. Bv contrast, our Hong Kong :
- - manggement information.

and Singapore operations, which are the chief suppliers to group Modern commanicaions
companies, performed with their usual vigor. aid the ease of trurel
In 1996 we welcomed Walter Foster and Design Eve to the Group, and alfow our businesses to
B . . . think globaily, but act und
we also changed our structure in the United States. 1 appointed Hanvey DA
& - make Jecisions locally.
Goldstein to the newlv-created position of President, Quarto North
America, and he has also joined the main Group Board. The operating
businesses in the United States now report to Harvey. One immediately
noticeable benetit of chis change is an increase in the amount of business
that units do with cach other, and a growth in the level of comfort they
have in cach other. Harvey's presence, and his long experience as a senior
executive in publishing, assures that group-wide initiatives can now be
taken.
Harvey's appointment was made, in part, because 100 many units were
reporting directly to me, and were not receiving all the attention they
deserved, and because North America is the principal marketplace for the

Group’s ])ublications. Another MIAJOr reason was my continuing concern
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The market for g
interactive

books and kits
is very strong

that we should have well-
founded growth in our businesses and, given
that a number of business presidents were
formerly owncer-entrepreneurs, [ wanted us to be in a position
N . . . . Wherher received us 31’]{,
. to focus on succession issues. 1 am sure that Harvev will be a . -
- or .fe_.'f-purcfmscd, the user

tremendous help in this area. finds our books-plus

Some departures must be noted. Marta Hallett, having projects a distinct

- R - whvantage,  Ther an
successfully created the distinctive Packaged Goods list in New ddrantage.  TRer are

) o enjoved perticulurdy by

York, and launched the Peanuts titles under its license, e .
children and by readers

resigned to join HarperColling as publisher of their Collins that ure starting o new

imprint, Sadly, this has not been an amicable parting. Packaged pustime.

Goods is now in dispute with HarperCollins, and the

continuation of the Peanuts program is in jeopardy. Mark Weinbaum, who

created the tremendously successful Front Line art publishing business,

which has been struggling to recapture its position for the last two years,

resigned abruptly in September. We recognize and thank both Marta and

Mark for their respective contributions.

The Business and the Marketplace

Quarto’s principal business is book publishing. Our various imprints
preduce, collectively, several hundred new titles each vear, heavily
illustrated, non-fiction books mainly designed to enhance the reader’s skills
or knowledge about a particular subject. We are particularly well-known
for our how-to instructional books in the arts and crafts fields, and for our
innovative and engaging, interactive children’s titles. We also publish books
for the home cook, for practitioners in the commercial and graphic arts

fields, and tor collectors.
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The largest part of our book publishing is in international co-cditions.
You will not see our name on the spine and title page of our books. Unlike
most publishers, we don’t sell our books to retailers ourselves. The
contents of our bouks are intended to be relevant to the needs of readers
worldwide and, to optimize our sales, we license publishers and
distributors to market and sell our books in detined territories or market
sectors. We supply finished, manufactured books to cur customers, with
their names on the sl)inc and title Prage. In order to continue to cxpl()it
their licenses, our castomers have to order reprints from us.

Unlike most publishers, we commit to the production of a new tide
only when we, in turn, have firm commitments from our customers
worldwide that will cover the direct costs of creating the content and
manufacturing the initial print run.

By operating in this manner, we achieve two important ol)jccti\'cs: {1

we eliminate the financial risk which is common to most publishing. Each

title we publish has to pav its way; {2) we have a filtering process which
helps to tocts our publishing output on market need, as perceived by our s
e , : . You won’t see
customers, and which doesn’t rely cnt:rcl)‘ on our gwn creative hunches.
In common with most pubdishers, we organize our publishing the Quarto name
programs into imprints, or lists. Each list has its own distinctive identity,

on the spine of

one specializing in books for the hobbvist, another in titles for young
readers, These distinetions help each list to have an identity for its our bOOkS
customers and a focus for its creative energies.

Unlike most publishers, we own most of the content of the books we
produce. Gur books are generally highly illustrated, and are sophisticated

in content and design. Our publishing mission is to produce

books that inform, instruct, and entertain. The effort to
produce these books is collaborative. Qur editors and

designers work with writers, illustrators, and photographers
to produce books that enhance the knowledge or skill base
of readers. Our titles are produced because we perceive
that the markets for them are identifiable, quantitiable,

and reachable through established distribution channcels,

Others can sell books 1o
wholesalers and retailers

better than we can, so

/,-" ’ ' their names goon the
-~ -
otad spine und title page. Fow
.
con rival our ability w
produce these books.
T . .
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and have a clear interest in, or need for, what we are producing.

The intellectual property in our books is our greatest asset. It is an
essential part of our business model that we own the content. We need to
be able to exploit the expensive material we have created. Markets change,
and distribution channels change, but much of our content is of enduring
mterest. Without 2 free hand to “re-purpose™ our archive of material, we
would be at a disadvantage in producing hooks at a competitive price in the
first instance. Print remains an cnduring medium not simpl_\' because it is
powerfully effective. It is also remarkably good value for money, something
[ remind myself every time [ buy a tie for many times the cost of a fine
book.

Almost half of our co-edition publishing revenues each vear comes
from the sale of reprints of books created in prior seasons. Of our anmual
output of new titles, some may derive from older

L]
books, whose development costs were written off years Rep rints sales
ago, others are entircly new, and we capitalize their are Very

development costs and write them off over three years.
, o . . bouyant
We are still reprinting books and exploiting material
created twenty vears ago, when our annual output
barelv reached a dozen new titles. Such is the value of our backlist and of
our ability to continue to exploit its marketability.
The very rapid transformation of
American book retailing over the last

decade reflects the enormous increase in

the output of new titles, and the

Reprints regularly provide
50% or more of our co-
edition revenues. The
high quality of our
eamings stream is an
endozsement of our policy
of preducing high quality
books of enduring interest.

[TV S ORI SV T = 1)
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Responding to
changes in the
marketplace

consumer’s desire for a wide selection and immediate
availability. At the same time, the rate of change has challenged
the book publishing industry’s ability to adapt. The pace of
openings of massive superstores has not been matched by the rate of
increase in final sales, although it is abundanty clear that consumers
prefer, and spend more i, well-stocked superstores than in the older
and smaller bookshops.

E\‘dﬁe_the]ess. there is a cost for this shopping experience and extensive
retailer stockholding, To date, this cost has been botne mostly by
traditional trade publishers. Traditional publishing, which relies upon
forcing new titles into an already crowded niche retailing environment, has
embraced the superstores, as they have provided the space to displav what's
available, The benefit to Quarto has also been substantial. Our focus on
publishing for niche, special interest audicences, often squeexes out our
books from smaller stores. Superstore retailers, however, understand the
strong dernand that exists in special interest areas, and thev devote
considerable shelf space to these niche categorics.

But, for trade publishers as a whole, the benefit of increased shelf space
and exposure is often more apparent than real. Expensive marketing
campaigns, which revolve around getting people into the stores, frequently
dilute their impact as thev open up the reader’s eves to the profusion of
titles available. The enormity of the choice tends to limit the number of
copies of cach title sold, so that the increase in exposure is offset, for the
publisher, by the bookseller’s periodic need to return excess or slow-
moving inventory, 1996 was a vear in which many publishers in the United
States, as in the UK a vear or so carlier, found that their accounts

receivable were being settled in returned merchandise rather than cash,

Our magnetic cookbaoks,
designed o cling 10
rgﬁ-igemmr doors, are an
example of our innovative
response to the
opportunitics in the
marketplace. In this
.\‘pccded-up world, these
recipes qfer some inswnt

ronking ideus.
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Selling books

Quarto is not in the

the impact of these heavv returns.

L]

1n non- business of being a trade )

traditional publisher, neither dees it produce would-be
best sellers, so we were largely insulated from

outlets -

In Europe, including Britain, the size of

bookstores is also growing, and is set to grow at a faster pace.
The level of retailer competition is lower, though, and a more
conservative approach to marketing, relving less heavilv on price,
and a more conservative public, will probably ensure that the US
experience is not copied slavishl)'.

Another growing dimension in selling books is the fact that
bookstores, although the core outlet for wide selections of titles,
and responsible for a majority of book sales, are diminishing in
importance for some of the fastest selling titles, both paperback

and hardback. The prefusion of outlets for best-selling

Probubly half of our books
are sold eutside bookstores.
Specialis: retailers recognize
the yreat value that seiling
books represents for their
customers. .in'rfiaugh
bookstores are the core
market_for books, we expect
the impace of specialy
retailers to continue

growing.

paperbacks has been common cnough for vears. In the last decade, th()ugh,

supermarkets, hypermarkets, warchouse clubs, and specialist retailers, from

Ikea to Past Times, from The Nature Company to Williams Sonoma, are

an important part of a growing market for books. Indeed, it has been

estimated that a quarter of the sale of some American best-selling fiction

titles is through warchouse clubs alone. Added to this growth through non-

traditional retail outlets, is the explosion of sales through such direct

selling techniques as party plan (exemplified by the Dor[ing Kindersley

Family Library), display marketing (such as The Book People in the UK

and Reading’s Fun in the US), school book fairs (Scholastic and Troll), and

the like. The growth of the market overafl has been exponential, and I'm

pleased to report that Quarto’s book publishing businesses are alert to the

opportunities.

Our strategy to reach these new markets is evolving. In 1995 we

opened a co-edition publishing sales office in the Enited States, and sent

our Sales and .\-‘larkcting Birector there for a year to get it running, In

PEESISENET I
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1996 we opened a similar operation in Australia, and two of our most
senior and experienced salespeople have relocated to Sydney. These offices
allow us to get closer to the markets and to create new selling
opportunities. The fact that we own most of the intellectual property in
the titles we create gives us a Hexibilit in marketing and publishing that
confers a distinct competitive a<l\'.1t1tagc. To take only one kind of example:
in order to leverage our assets we have been able to apply a license for, sav,
Disney or Warner, to a concept that we had developed originally in a
generie format. In our children’s book division, the titles we now produce,
incorporate a book and related conmponents. Thc_\' have been positioned,
to date, for the book trade but, with a litte adaptation, we can present

them (liﬂbrcntl)‘ tor other markets.

Prospects

Our major markets continue to be strong. Since the last quarter of 1996
there is some evidence that even the British market is improving and, as it
now represents only some 1% of our co-vdition publishing sales, as

There is plenty of

compared to 23% five vears ago, that would be a welcome chanee, and
d b 4 Eh,

would open up strong opportunities for sales growth in the UK. room fOl' grOWth
But e recognize that the gm\\‘rh and increasing prosperity of Quarto in our maj or

has been determined only marginally by the overall health of the industry.

markets

The strength of individual economies and our own efforts have a much
greater impact. Even though our sales rank us as a medium-size publisher,
the book industrv is made up of an extracrdinarily large number of

companices of all sizes. Qur sales account for less than one per cent of

books sales in our major markets. The future, then, is in our hands,
to increase our share of these book markets and to
benefit from their steady growth.

After a brief hiatus of a couple of vears, when
many inside the publishing industry, and many
outside observers and analysts, questioned the
continuing relevance of the book in the digital age,

book publishers are emerging with renewed New medio-newspapers,

confidence. As foreshadowed in my magazings, movies, radio,

statement at the interim stage, we have not \:‘:Q‘sj'/ wleision, und o on -
huave evolved from books
continued with our own efforts at multimedia and from cach other.
software publishing. Instead, we have merged our Initially rching on
material from “old”
media, these new media
have spon established their
own centent. Al the
while, the book publishing
indusiry has grown by
<ICv.’ommaduling new ﬂ?(’(ﬂd
and searching for new

markets.
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business into Inroads, a mulimedia soltwvare dcveloper in Boulder,
Colorado. Inroads, an affiliate label of Broderbund, one of the major
consumer software publishers in the United States, produces titles for
consumers in much the same way that Quarto produces books. We
endorse their approach to the market and, in exchange for our investment
of $£,775,000 of which $525,000 was satisfied by the injection of Quarto’s
digital marterial, we have taken 2 30% stake in the enfarged entity.

For most book publishers, the threat of CD-Rom and the Internet has
been more apparent than real. Most recently, one of the two farge book
superstore chains in the United States has stopped handling CD-Roms, and
the other is contining them to a minority of its outlets. The nature of the
book will once again clmnge, as it has so i'rcqucml_\' in the past, so that
book publishing can comfortably accommodate a new medium nibbling
away at its franchise. In the process, it is now clearer
that multimedia must develop its own material and that 0 bl - h.
books can be designed to offer a level of interactivity urx Pu 1$ lng
and engagement that multimedia promised, but has not Pl‘ograms are
vet delivered. In consumer publishing, multimedia organised
software is having an impact on “soft” reference books. .
Through Quarto’s ownership interest in Inroads, we thematlcally
hope to benefit as this side of the multimedia
publishing business makes use of some of our vast resources and archive.

For the publisher, the consumer market, which
is Quarto’s primary audience, remains
intact and responsive to the special
advantages of the book. The

task of our publishing

Qur lists segment their
markets by theme. e
seck niche audiences ar all
levels and produce books
both for beginners and jbr
professionals.




Above all books
are portable

units is to focus on market needs, and to devise our

books in formats and at price points that enable us to i
take advantage both of traditional publishing arrangements !
and of the growth in new distribution channels. We continue to
redefine the fnction of the book, to segment the market, and o target our
audiences as specifically as possible.

Altlibugh the continued rise of sterling and the overall value of sterling

is a concern, we are responding to it as we reacted to the dramatic rise in  EE———

the price of paper a few years ago. We will accommodate it into our
You can take and use

lanning, adjust our pricing, and, if necessarv, our fornsats, We anticipate
p 2 ad] P S ? .7 P books almost enywhere!

that we will be able to make these adjustments in the same wav as we, and

other successful international businesses, have done in the last twenty years.

Neither the dvnamic of change, nor its direction, are frightening. We
anticipate that we shall continue to outperform others in our business
because we have ahwavs paid a great deal of attention to operational
efficiencies, and to cost and margin disciplines. By operating these
disciplines effectively we have been able to provide the framework within
which our creative team can have the confidence to de\'e]op their concepts

fully, and to execute them properly.

Currency volatility issues aside, we expect another vear of solid growth
| in 1997 and, with that in mind, your Board is recommending a final
dividend of 5.8p net, for a total of 8.0p for the vear ended December 31,
1996 (1995: 7.25p) to be paid on May 15, 1997 to sharcholders on the
register on March 18, 1997.

Once again, [ want to take this annual opportunity to express thanks to
staff, customers, and suppliers, all of whom contributed to our record

results in 1996,

Laurence F Orbach
February 27, 1997
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Letter from the President,
Quarto North America

Dear Sharcholder,

s the newly appointed President of Quarto North America, I'm

delighted to write this introductory letter to offer vou a glimpse into

he thinking that resulted in the creation of this position and, most
importantly, what you can expect as an outcame from this investment.

It has long been a desire of the Board to pull together the various parts
of our business in North America. There are opportunities we have in this
market that are better serviced with an on-site, experienced manager
familiar with and whe understands the strategic importance of North
America as a major means of achieving our goal of accelerated growth,

As the Board discussed the practicality of this position, the necessity
became even maore apparent. We saw a need to create a focus and a
concomitant management attentiveness to the e.\'isting businesses. We
were eager to develop a leadership position to help sct the direction and
create the plans for the growth and future position of each business. In
addition, we wanted to form a single focal point to carry the responsibility
for the financial performance while bringing a discipline and creativeness to
the core processes and operating principles of each unit.

In the ongoing exploration of the idea of 2 North American unit the
Board was convinced of the urgency to bcgin to exploit the commonality of
expertise, interest and markets that exists in each of the companies. It was
quite apparent that having a North American unit would help bring
unforced svnergies, encourage internal growth and result in the creation of

a larger business.




As we enter 1997 we are hcginning to see the maximization of the
opportunitics and efficiencies we th(mght were possible. Several have
begun to matore while others are about to start, These include:

The movement into non-traditional outlets ancd new markets, im'lu(ling
the mass and specialty markets and the incorporation of testing the direct
sc]]ing channel w the home,

The substantial increase in new product offerings at most sites, but
especially apparent at Walter Foster, Rackport and TFront Line,

The lcvcrnging of our assets to their best advantage through the
expansion of the North American sales base, We will accomplish this by
cnhancing both the external distribution channel, as evidenced by
Rockport’s domestic publishing and distribution arrangement with one of
thelr major partners, F & W Northlight, aml the internal distribution
channel, as evidenced by Walter Foster and Front Line™s use of Book Sales'
illdUStl'}', leading position in the servicing of the retail book stores.

The sourcing of skills to enhance the structure that's already in place,
including the development of sakes plans to motivate and grow the business
at Broughton Hall, the cultivation ()ftcclumlogv and warchouse expurtise
that resides at Book Sales to investigate efficiencies with both Scafa and
Rockport as prime candidates.

The improved quality and timeliness of decision making that is made
mare possible through casier access and more frequent periodic visits to
company sites that is evidenced by the soon-to-be completed relocation of
Scafa and its Modern Arts edlition division, the testing of a satellite phone
operation at Broughton Hall and the creation of an Inventony policy at
Book Sales to heighten its cff‘icicnqz

The development and implementation of longer-term strategies and the
positioning of those to rapidly achieve our goals that include the expansion
of Knickerbocker Press at Book Sales, the evaluation of a new publishing
venture at Rockport, the enhancement of the deal making opportunities of
Inroads Multimedia with major corporate entities and the acquisition of
key management tatent and skills to complement and grow several of the
indivicdual operating units.

This is an exciting time to be part of the Quarto Group. We have
many opportunitics and the creation of the structure, which T now manage,
will help us take advantage of our best assets - our expertise and our people
- and it will provide a strong foundation for the company as a whole, 1

cagerly look forvard to the opportunity and the challcng&

Harvey Goldstein
February 27, 1997
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Rod Pearce
Hanaging Director, AP,
showing off his wares.

A P Screenprinters

AP Sereenprinters is the largest specialist sereen
printerin the Thames Valley region. The company
operates from a modern 23,000 square foet |:1c‘l‘11'_\' in
Reading and has superh motorway links to all parts of
the country. AP meoved from much smaller premises in
Maidenhead and 1996 was our first full year in
Rcading. The move proved to be an instant success,
resulting in better working conditions and greater
productivity,

A P has been in business since 19553, and was
acquired by Quarto in 1988, A profitable and go-
ahead company with a happy and enthusiastic
worktorce, over the vears A I has built up 2 solid
client base of blue chip companies for which it
produces point-ot-sale displavs for the retail market.
The organization emplovs 40 peaple and has invested
in state-of-the-art pre-press equipment, and modern
pri_nting presses.

1996 results were excellent, with an cxpan(lcd
client base and quicker turn-rownd tines. Turnover
was not quite as high as hoped, but still grew by 99,
with profits rising bv §%%,

The company fuels very bullish about ies future and

we are determined o forge abead with our

expansionist plans throughout 1997 and bevond.

ot e et 4N teg L Mt e 4 © 4k bsinmae e Cames e mem i~ eee o

Mel Shapiro
President, Book Sales.

Book Sales

Book Sales, Inc. is a promotional publisher. Our list

consists of publishers overstocks, known in the trade as
remainders; reprints of previously published and out-
of-print books; and co-edition books. The co-edition
books we publish are gcneraﬁ)‘ Jarge format, eves
catching books, superbly illustrated and
produced. Our core customers are
looking for fine books of real value, and
this is what we deliver.

1996 was a profitable vear for
Book Sales. Sales increased by 239,
with an operating profit of almost 99%.
We achicved this despite negative

trends throughout our industsy, with

massive returns dcmsmting the sales of

Frank Oppel
YP Marketing, Book Sales

many publishers.

In the first place, we accomplished
this by changing our product mix by
aceelerating our remainder purchases. Secondly,
warchouse cfﬁciem}', in terms ofﬁhipping and
turnaround time of orders, was tremendously improved
over previous vears. Thirdly, more reliable deliveries
from our supplicrs helped us greatly.

The loss of the independent l)bokstorvs, due to the
explosive growth of the chaing, such as Barnes & Noble
and Bordcrs, is a matter of concern in the ](mgcr-tcrm.
We are countering this by expanding our customer

base beyond the traditional book market.
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Broughton Hall, Inc.

Broughton Fall publishes, markets, and sells honw-ter
directories :Iircclly 1o consumers throughout North
America, The market leadler in ity industr_\' niche,
Broughton Hall is the largest advertiser nationwicke
among classificd media, Direct response to adn;rtizing
is handled bva highlv sophisticated in-hound
tr:lunmrkuting sales group utili'/.ing state-of-the-art call
centre technology, During 1996 the company received
close to 1,750,000 sales calls by converting entircely to
toll-free numbers and extending its a(l\'ertizing. This
call volume represented a
39% increase over calls
received the previous vear
and presented significant
operational Challengcs and
opportunities, especially in
the area of sales recruiting,
hiring, and training,

During 1996 Broughton
Hall also initiated a state-of-
the-art out-bound call

centre with automated data

Pam Byrne. President
Broughton Hall

capture and manipulation
capabilitics, What proved to be a major
(lisn])p()intrm'nt in 1996 still represents a signiticant
apportunity for the future: Establishment of the out-

bound call centre as a fulle operational growth area.

Telemarketing operation at
Broughtan Hall.

Design Eye
Design Eve specializes in added value pul)lishing,
a]lowing an instructional book to become a fully
functional starter ki by inc]uding within it materials
suitable for use with the book clement, This has
proven to be a Wy siceesshul concept worldwide as
the books are currently printed in fifteen languagus.
1996 has scen an advance in turneover and protfit
over 1995 and the suceessiul development of many
new concepts | all of which have een well received by
our castomer base. Some of these will be launched in
1997 and the balance in our
1998 ])ublishing Programmnie,
Duaring the latter part of
1996 we invested considerable
tinme in rustructm'ing our
working team, L‘nlmncing the
working environment and

improviﬂg svstems, We also laid

Michael Tout and Lee Robinsan,
joint Managing Directors, Design Eye
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the foundations for attracting a broader customer base,
arul decided, in the domestic UK market, to publish

some ol our titles ourselves.

Front Line Graphics

1996 was detinitely a vear of ups and downs for Front
Line. On the upside, the successful launch and growth
of the Strange Matter children's fiction series was very
gratifving, with sales reaching $2 million by the end of
the yvear. In a similar vein, the launch of the mid-
market, price-sensitive, Avery art print line was a
11‘smm(1ing suceess. It gave Front Line extensive
exposure in key mass market retailers such as Target,
R-Mart, ete.

On the downside, the launch of the Front Line

Classic Collection was a failure, and the prints and card
division turned in a dismal financial performance,
leading to a vear-end Joss. r\long the way the founder
and president, Mark Weinbaum, parted the company
as did some of our other key personnel. Stephen Paul,
in San Diego on an assignment from Quarto’s head
oftice in London, assumed control of the company in
September.
During the final
quarter he assessed
the business and
instituted a
restructuring that
sces the company
well placed to start
afresh in 1997,

In a business so

totally dependent

on the quality of

Stepher Paul,
President. Frent Line

the images

published, a key
strategic decision was made to appoint art directors
and product development managers for each of the

individual print and card lines. All personnel were in

VR,
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Kim Butler. VP Sales and
Publisher. Pajoma Editions

place by the end of
the vear, In
adddition, the
potentially highly
suceessiul Palema
line of African American prints was enhanced by the
addition of two salespeople, frecing publisher/sales
director, Kim Butler, to provide more direction for the
imprint. In addition, Paloma embarked on a mulsi-
level markcting initiathve
which is expected to bear

significant fruit in 1997.
5

Inroads
Interactive
Inroads Interactive ix a
CD-ROM developer and

publisher located in

Boulder, Colorado.

Johnny Ray Barnes, author,
Strange Malter series

Inroads develops software
in the Reference, Litestle
and "Ldutainment” categories. Our current line of
software includes Multimedia Dags, Multimedia Cats,
Multimedia Exotic Pets, Multimedia Bugs, Multimedia
Guns, andd Multimedia Horses. Scheduled for Spring
1997 and Summer 1997 refeases, respectively, are
titles on Photography and Cigars. Both new titles are

based heavily on Quarto’s material

Broderbund Sottware, handles our North American
distribution to traditional seltware retailers and
distributors, Broderbund publishes best-xelling titles
like Must, Carmen Sandliego, and Printshop Deluxe,
wwhich have sold over a million units cach. inreads
handles direct sales {phone orders, internet oxders,

magazine ads, direct mail, ctey, and sales to altemarive

* e e AR =
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channels (pct stores, .\'P()rting g()()(]s stores, am s]mps,
cte.). Outside North America, Inroads sclls LLS,
English versions, and licenses l‘orcign languagc versions
into over adozen territorics. As an L'xamplc,
Multimedia Dogs has heen translated and localized in

twelve Tanguages, with more still forthcoming,
guag

Inroads currently concentrates on "niche” or
“single-source” reforence titles, producing multiple
titles that share 2 common code base and vary onlyv in
content, not programming. An example of this is the
pet series, which share about 909 of the un([cri}'ing

software and vary

essentially in graphics,

Inroads produces
CD-Roms and has an
active page on the
World Wide Web

Sty o} OCDA
TR bt e s A, o rrs md e

Mrmds 00 1 OCDAM

photos, videes, audio and

Minosda I3 RO . text.
T i i b g e e s

Inroads’ strengths lie
in both distribution and
development . Shelf space
is very competitive
worldwide, and our

affiliation with Broderbund

rmeas® o assures us of access to the

buvers of all major
software retailers. Our international distribution also
affords us a very important avenue tor increased
revenue. Our development strength lies in our abilit
to create titles quickly {three to six months generallyy,
inexpensively (the industry average is about
LisS300,000 per titkes vs. ours of less than
USS$100,000), cfﬁcicntl}' (to run on the most basic
multimedia machine without problems) and €AY to

localize for forcign languages.

The biggest disappointment of 1996 was the
massive amount of returns over the slow—se]ling

Spring/Surmamer months. This was endemic to the

A R R e e e e e

industiv but, since those weak months, our sales have

improved dmmati(‘a”_\'.

Highlights of 1996 included completing a deal with
Ralston Purina Company (the largest pet foed company
in the world). Purina licensed content from our CD-
ROMs for their web site and we have created a
"private-label” version of Multimedia Dogs for them to
sell as a premium item, Thev have guaranteed to
purchase 10,000 copies and we have granted an option
on a "pri\'atc-lal)cl" version of Multimedia Cats,  We
believe this "branded software™ could become an

important aspect of the industry.

Another major hightight of 1996 was the
partership formed with Quarto. In the past we have
spent nearly half of our development time acquiring
content. The Quarto alliance wilt enable us to focus
more resources on software development.  Planned
additional CD-ROMs from Quarto coutent include a
line of children’s science titles, based on the Insight
books b_\' Robin Kerrad, a line of children’s pet titles
repurposing some of our pet content with neyw Quarto
material, and Happy Hour, a slight[_\' tongue-in-cheek
reference work on drinks to prepare for and use during

a part_\'.

ProVision

ProVision provides professional publication services to
llustrated book ])leléshers worldwide, specializing in
books produced by graphic arts publishers,

Acting as a publisher’s production department in
Singapore, ProVision has access to suppliers
throughout Asia and obtains the best services available
in the region. Qur service goes from the preparation

of publisher’s material for production, to controlling

B e e T L DOy PSR S S RO
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Puiling a print from
our Melbourne ware-

house

L ammlwii i

colour proofs, press runs, and schedules, and
dispatching finished hooks worldwide,

From printing most of RotoVision's famous
international publications, the company has buiht up a
solid reputation and a faithiud cientele base both in
North and South Amcerica.

.-\l[h(mgh sales increased by 13.5% in 1996, this
came moxthy from increased work for Group
customers, while the acquisition of new clients slowed,
With new dedicated sales staft planned for mid- 1997,
the compamys client base shoulkd expand in the near
future.

The companys net profitehifity was maintained
stightly above 1% ol sales cven though gross margins
declined by 2600, This dectine should be reversed as

new client refations are established.

Quantum

Quantum specialises in reprinting and re-publishing
the extensive Quarto Group backlist in an efficient low
cost manner with a l)igh emphasis on standardisation of
all of the ¢lements of the sales and production of
“packaged” books. By reducing the variation of

formats and materials, we are able to increase the
operating speed of all aspects of the business, from the
initial sale to actual hook production, achieving
substantial volume redated price reductions. This has

led to Quantum producing sales per emplovee at a
| g )

substantially higher level than our traditional ca-edition

publishing, which helps offset the margin pressures that
cxist in this arca of the market.

In 1996 Quantum reprinted almost two hundred
backlist titles, several for the first time for almost a
decade in the main worldwide English Ianguagc
markets. December 1996 saw the delivery of the firs
titles ])m(luccd l)}' Quantum in f()reign translation, an
arca that has substantial growth opportunities over the
next fow vears,

The promotional market remains highly
competitive and cvclical in its nature. The British
market proved ditficult until late in the vear, and the
outleok for the US in 1997 is less positive. The speed
of operation within Quantum '
enables quick response to market
changes, and high level of
management involvement in the
sales effort ensures that resources
are reallocated to fulfill market

demands.,

Quarto
Australia Pty
Led.

Quarto Australia publishes anc

distributes art prints and posters.

Ker Parsons, Managing
Director, Quarto Australia

Art Nouveau publishes images
with uniquely Australian themes:
traditional Australtan landscapes, Aboriginal, and
contemporary stvles. On the distribution side, Parmur
Melbourne, Parmur Svdney, Boolarong (Brisbanc), and
Poster Editions (Svdney) supply the Australian and
New Zealand framing and decorator markets with a

wide range of imported and local prints and posters,
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Steve Atkins, Generai
Marager. Quarto Australia

During 1996 Art Nouveau published its most
diverse ever range ol prints, all 1o critical acclaim.
With the exception of works b the artist Berie

Walsh, with whom we began collaborating at the end

ot the provious sear, and swhose prints were cxlrvmcl_\' clients are 1GHow ing our
stccesstul, sades el short of the acclaim, and of our lead inwo more upanarket
expectation, andl expensive product

Maintaining and i reasing our market position ranges. We have appointed a m.u‘kcting specialist 1o
overail inan Increasinghy competitive and price our team amd are |1-|>.u‘k.1ging our product range o
sensitive market has required continued investment in cter and develop new |1L1|’kt'l.}‘, such as the gift rade,
our sales elfort and the generation of new ideas and which we believe is of sizeable potential.

markets, During 1996 we had aur most stable sales
. S . - >
torce and our most suceesstul Trade Fair, and Quarto Chlldren s Books

maintained o pre-eminent position in the

Significant further growth was achicved in 1996 with a
markctplacc. A number of our framing and decorator 269%

0 Increase i sales over 19935, We ereated 35 new

tithes to add to our growing

backlist. International sales
increased with now growth in
Spain, ftalv, Gcrman_\"‘ and the
Crech Republic. We continue
1o dominate the innovative
book-and- component market,
which has become a generic
book category cagerly scaLEgllt
after by publishers around the
world, We have exciting new

iddeas which will ensure that we

Working out the
concept.

bhildren's books being assem-
bled by hand in China
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circulation is largely attributable to our covermount
campaign, with nine issucs cnrrving a free
supplement, This resulted in a net expenditure on

the magazine, as acdvertising revenue remained {lat.

remain the leader in this field. We anticipated a time lag in the advertising revenue
During 1996 we added a licensed products and next vear’s revenue should benefit from the
division, which launched a Disney 101 Dalmations increased circulation,

Jigsaw Book and a Warner Bros. Looner Tunes Activity On the exhibition front, Artists &

Book. More titles are planned for

1997. Publishing highlights

Mustrators launched the ‘Summer

Festival of Art” at Hatfield House in

lllCl“dL’(l TWo more in our \'(‘:I"\' Hurtfor(]shire. We ('I.ESO ['l(’.‘](l Our

successful series of Treasure Art Materials Exhibition at the

Chests titles: Holv Lands and NEC, Birmingham for the sccond
Ancient China; a new series of 6 consecutive vear. Both exhibitions
Esplorers Plus reterence books were successful ventures for the
containing acetate pages and magazine and proved to be very
flaps; 8 new interactive Bear’s popular with visitors and exhibitors.
titles; 4 Learning Works - an However, after two years at the
extension of our Armorks series; NEC, Birmingham, we have
and 4 new science kits: Shimy, decided to bring the Art Materials

Sparky, Stinkr, and Shiny. From Exhibition: back to London.

our voung readers division came  Making prototypes
R by hang The overall performance of Quarto Magazines was
10 Fit-a-Shape books, and 4 =
. | . i i disappointing due to the closure of st In-Line
books with soft tov animals in a new series called Reafl =
Wild Pers magazine, and the write off of abortive costs on
o . thack . titte L and another title which was not Jaunched. The pitot issue
ur major sethback was in meeting demand anc

. . . of st In-Line, the UK’s only pure in-line skating
schedules on time, as a result of which we lost sales in -

agazine, was launched i tober 1995. The
1996. To help deal with the problems, we magazme, was launched in October 5 *

. . magazine went monthly in April 1996 and we
strengthened our Production Department with a new = .

. ] . . sroduced seven issues. The sport, unfortunately, is
Production Dircctor, which should stand us in good l port. B

) still in it infancy in the UK and the readevship and
stead for further growth in 1997, ‘
advertising could not sustain the title, so we were

. forced to suspe + title 3 -
Quarto Magazules orced to suspend the title in October

Artists & Hustrators magazine had a good vear, and
continues to be the UK’s leading Practica] art
magazine. News stand sales and subscriptions
reached record levels: news stand sales increased by

14%, anel subscribers grew by 25%. The increased

T e e P R €] LR Y R RSP ¢ et . -
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Zarni Win, Production

Manager, answering a ques-

tion about scheduies!

o
-

Quarto Publishing

Quarto Publishing produces international co-edition
books for a range of spedal interest markets. Many of
the titles are on practical how=to subjects, from art
instruction aml \\'()()(l\\‘nrking o health and petcare.

Our expertise is in the Wav we present information
on the page: we use design, phot raphy, and
illustration to make cach
subject more accessible, and
Quarto is renowned in the
industry for prmfucing
innovative titdes packed with
infermation.

One of our major initiatives
in 1996 has been to establish a

Reference division, which weats

more l1CA\'_\'\\'(‘ig|lt subjects - such as art history, atlases,
and popular science « in the Quarto stvle, The
rescarch and development of the first four titles is now
complete, and these titles will be published in 1997.

Many of our titles sell to specialist, rather than
general interest, publishers, and we undertake our ovwn
research to understand trends and needs in cach of our
special-interest markets. We aim to scll to specialist
publishers because they are often able to offer us better
margins than general publishers; they are also more
likely to reprint, and our business depends on reprints
for its profitability, in order to amortive the relatively
high production costs of each title.

In 1996, we increased our cutput of new titles l)_\-
10%, and achieved a 17% growth in
associated turnover, with particularly strong
performances in the USA and Australia.

On the other hand, the UK market
remained sluggish, while reprint sales saw

oo growth over the 1995 tigure. This mcant

Moira Clinch,
Art Director, Quarto.
If the hat fits......

Marjorie Nelson.
Sales and Marketing Director, Quarto
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Charlotte Gascoigne.

Publisher, Quart . . . .
uplisher. Hiarta Traditionally known for titles published at keenly

competitive prices, the continued success of titles in
our Companion sevies, including the workds bestselling
ook on cigars, The Cigar Companion, and award-
winners such as The Champagne Companien, have
encouraged Quintet to extend its range upmarket. The
series now includes The Fountain Pen Companion, and
The Beer Companion.

Gourmer Magners TN/ Fridge FunTM, an innovative

that the overall turmover range of magnetized miniature cookbooks that adhere

growth was a modest 4%, to refrigerators, progressed into new markets, with
Our 1996 programme, forcign language sales to numerous European clients,
however, saw a massive In the United Kingdom this range also moved into
increase in sales to non-traditional and premium markets bevond the book
specialist publishcrs, trade. And in the United States and the Pacitic Rim,
which is good news for the 1997 order book for

the reprint potential of reprints reflect substantial

these titdes in future vears. premium special sales, and
Silvia Langford .
) In 1996, we extended our successful own-brand opportunities.
Sales Director, Quarto
Marketing. Australia kits programyme to encompass The Fortune While broadening its
=
Telling Kit, which packaged a book together publishing base, Quintet
with Tarot cards, rune stones, and 1-Ching coins, and continues to benefit from its
has alrcady proved a runaway Interpational success. ability to deliver superior
Continued attention to controlling our plant costs books at competitive prices,

led to a 3% increase in gross profit, but overheads

crept up as we sought to maintain levels of customer

service., Although 1996 saw an increase of only 1% in

Diana Steedman,
1996 operating profit, our operating margin of 20% Managing Editor, Quintet

remains exceptionally high for the sector.

Quintet Publishing

Quintet Publishing produces Hlustrated titles which are

livensed internationally to other publishers.

Quarto
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with the continuing Identifier portable reference series,
and numerous cookery and craft projects ('ontril)uting
o profit. The Collectible Barbie Doll, based on the
popular tay, and published in a familiar Quintet
format, was an instant hit, selling over 100,000 units
within a few maonths of publication. In 1996 we also
published Quintet's first books-plus package, The
Japunese Cooking for Two Kir, which immt‘cliatcl_\' tound
partmers in six countries and made a good return on
investment.

1996 was in some respects a transitional vear as
Quintet appointed a new Publisher and undertook
‘ some new directions. The
order book for 1997 is robust
and reflects continued strong
suppott from the German
market and robust reprint

performance for backlist.

Regent
Publishing

Regent Publishing Services is
a broker, handling pre-press

and printing needs for Group
and non-Greoup customcers.

In order to accommodate

physical expansion, we leased

Larry Lazopauios, an additional 1,800 squarce
Regeni Publishing Services.

feet of space in our building
Hong Kong =

in Hong Kong. This
additional space now contains our library, storage,
ﬁlihg\ and a small showroom.
We also reorganized internally, to meet changing

market nevds. Regent now has a Purchasing

Quarto
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Department, a Pre-Press Departiment, and a
Printing/Shipping Department. Ear]_\' indications are
that this has resulted in an increase in confirmcd
orders, tighter quality control in pre-press, and a faster
turnaround of goods. To ensure ever higher quality in
printing, we emploved a Quality Control Manager and
his primarv function is to cstablish Regent quality
control standards for our suppliers, to maintain quality,
and to educate the staff in better quality control,

We were able to maintain tighter cost contral in
1996, especially in stabilizing pre-press prices.
Printing prices were helped b}' the drop in paper
prices. Just as importantly, the inflation rate in Hong
Kong was lower in 1996 than 1995, and from the
Government’s latest forecast, the position is likelv 1o

remain more stable.

Rockport

Rackport publishes architecture, interior dlesign,
computer-related, and graphic design titles for the
international professional
design market. In 1996
many of RUCL’p(th's new
titles were packaged with
CD-ROMs, such as Hyper-

Realistic Compurer-Generated

Vareytegey

Architectural Reudcn'ngs,
Painting With Computers, Type
Hype, and WK Design,

Many new titles were

128
/‘H

published also for the fine

artist, craftsperson, collector,
Stanley Patey,
President, Rockport Publishing
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Viinnie Danenbarger,
Editoriat and Creative Directar,
Rockport Publishers

hobbvist, and creative non-
artist,
With the growth each

vear of the front list, this

young publishing company
has now developed a substantial backlist with growing
reprint and foreign language edition potential. To
exploit this, the international sales team has been, and
is currently l)cing, expanded and trained.

This vear has seen the maturing of Rockport’s
creative stafl of editorial, design, and production staff,
Long range plans for new titles have been developed.
Schedules have been met consistently and many of our
new books have been selected for awards.

A new agreement reached in 1996 with North
Light Boaks, which will become operational in 1997,
will bring the entire Rockport list to American
bookstores, It expands and strengthens a long-standing
and profitable relationship, and will provide Rockport
with more name recognition and a stronger presence in
the US marketplace. All Rockport titles will be sold

from the Rockport catalogue.

Rotovision

RotoVisien is an international graphic arts publisher.
RotoVision's list falls into three principal areas:
publishing expensively produced, high quality source
books and annuals for the professional graphic arts
and advertising markets; distributing professional
and amateur applicd arts publications for other
publishers; and more recently, publishing
"educational” graphic and applied visual arts books
for the student and general markets, which we

started doing in 1993,

Bt o kit i s i B T S N e A b i il ke dden 1

At the end of 1996 this new arca accounted for
30.7% of total sales, with an increasing number of
fbrcign language editions, and we are putting more
of our resources into its expansion.

In April 1996 the company moved its sales,
preduction, and editarial
departments to
Brighton, England. A
new team, with only one
person from
Switzerland, was
emploved and trained
with enly very limited
loss to sales. The
benefits of a lower cost
base were already seen
in 1996 and will be fully

appreciated in 1997 and

Sefling a page in one of RotoVision's
professienal annuals

bevond. Gross margins

also improved by some 3.5%, helped by
RotoVision’s cxpancling publishing programume of
more moderately priced, high quality visual arts
books. '

While the market for high priced quality
reference works for the professional markets
declined by some 10% worldwide in 1996, they have
now stabilized. With new publications generated
internally, RotoVision will have a growing and
profitable future, based in England and with truly

worldwide sales,
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Scafa Tornabene Art
Publishing Co. Inc.

Operating wday under the trade name of The
Scata Modernart Group o put tocus on its two ke_\'
units, the company is recognized as the leading US
mass-and mid-market open editions publisher serving
the worldwide picture t‘mming industey, In 1996, we
sold approximately 27 million prints to direct
customers in over 30 countries around the world. Net
revenues were up by 8.3% over 1995, with meaningful
uprvard momentum shown in both the Scafa and
Modernart divisions.  Fn addition, a new division,
Inspired Designs, created and marketed finished
products, for the fiest time, directly to spectal retailing
segments.
Marketing wecomplishments in 1996 included:
Scafa Division
Worldhwide sales to the mass market in the US and
abroad grew by 6% over 1993,

In the face of continual heavy pressure on pricing,
selective promotions with kev accounts were emploved,

not ondy to keep the line

3

competitive, but also to
provide a real incentive
forr heavier stocking,
Most im;)ortantlv, the
upgrading of images
throughout the vear and

the release of a new user-

Art Castilta,
Chief Executive, Scafa

friendly five-section catalogue in December, should
help enhance continued growth in 1997.

Modernart Division

With its customer base, in terms of dollars of sales,
almost equally split between galleries and better picuure
framers for the furniture market, workdwide sales were
ahead by 15% over the previous vear.

A new catalogue, featuring Modernart’s own
publications, was released in February which,
combined with approximately 110 nes images in
1996, increased the more profisable cvwn-tmage
percent of business to 71% from 619 in 1995,

An ongoing “Partners in Profits™ promotion was
also successtully introduced in
1996 and will be repeated again in

1997.

Walter Foster
Publishing, Inc.

1997 will be Walter Foster
Publishing’s 75th vear of
pubtishing quality art and craft
rclated books and activity products
that are instructional, innovative,
and competitively priced.

Walter Foster went through

Ross Sarracino,
President, Walter Foster

many changes during its first vear
as a member of the Quarto Group.
Previously, the company sold its
products mainly into the art and craft markets. In
1996 it expanded and reorganized its sales department,
and is now also focusing on specialty and mass ’
markets. In addition, the company has established
relationships with other group members - i.e. Book

Sales and The Apple Press - which will also help us to
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increase sales and enter new markets.

In the atter part of 1996, Walter Foster
established a creative department, that includes a
creative director, two designers, and two editors. This
enthusiastic tcam will allow the company to extend our
publishing programme from 18 titles in 1996 10 68
titles in (997, 1tis the tirst time that Walter Foster
has been able to generate 2 new publishing programme
internally.

Walter Foster has also taken advantage of Quarto’s
relationships with Asian suppliers. The company has
moved much ol its printing and sourcing overseas.
This is reducing production costs and increasing profit
margins.

Other notable events of 1996 include publishing
two Looney Tunes titles (Learn to Draw Bugs Bunny and
Friends and Learn w Draw The Tasmanian Devil and
Friends) and two Marvel Super Heroes titles (How to
Draw Spider-Man and How To Draw Ghost Rider) and
signing a licensing agreemient with DC Comics to
produce four new how-ta titles in 1997 Batman,
Wonderveman, Superman, and DC Comic Heroes.

The major disappoiniment in 1996 was stow sales
in our core market. However, this was a vesult of
retailer (:\'crcxpa‘nsiun, not a reflection of dcclining
consumer interest, and
Walter Foster is
confident that its new
sales foree, in
conjunction with its
new products, lower
costs, and higher
margins, will enable the
company to achieve its

goals for 1997.

Sheena MNeedham,
Walter foster's new Creative Director

g it
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Western Screen and Sign

Woestern Screen and Sign designs and sereenprints
point-of—salc materials, spccializing in largc format 3-
dimensional items, made from plastic and corrugated
board. The Corsham, England, plant is particularly
proficient in multiple colour process printing of
intricate designs, where quality is of the utmost
importanee.

Fhe business was highlighted as giving cause lor
congern during the 1995 tinancial vear, During 1996
the Board uadertook a thovough
evaluation of the Corsham
business, with a view to returning
the business to profit or
considering its disposal. The
printing industry in which
Western Screen and Sign operates
has, over the past 3 vears,
undergone rapid technological
change. This has meant that the
Corsham plant has found itself

particularby itl-equipped to

Philip Bull,
Managing Director, Western

function in a cost conscious
market. In the middle of 1996 we
decided to undertake a radical modernization
progranumne. This has involved reducing overheads and
investing in new up-to-date machinery. The major
part of the costs attributable to manpower reduction
were borne in 1996, and the first stage of machinery
modernization took place at the same time.

The concluding part of the investment in new
equipment will take place during the first quarter of

1997. The budget for 1997 reflects the significant

improvement in efficiency which is being gained by our

maodernization programme. Results for the vear so far

are in line with budget.
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1. Sales

Reperted sales increased by 21%, from £66.5m to £80.6m. The strength of sterling in the last quarterof the year ad-versely affected
the reparted sales by £1.0m. On a like for like basis, sales would have been 23% ahead of last year, with continuing operations
contributing 11% and acquisitions contributing 12%.

An analysis of sales by division is given below:

1956 1585
£m % £m %
Publishing 70.6 88 54.1 gl
Publishing Services 10.0 2 12.4 14
80.6 100 66.5 106

Publishing sales increased by 30%, with continving operations contributing 15% and acquisitiens contributing 15%. There were
strong performances from our co-edition publishing businesses and our promotional publisher, Book Sales.

Publishing Services™ sales were down principally due to poor results from our UK operations. The performance of our overseas
aperations is masked because of the efimination of inter-group sales in arriving at the above analysis.

An analysis of sales by geographic market is given below: 1956 1665
£m % £m %
USA - 453 56 346 5¢
Europe : 2.1 15 8.2 12
UK 119 i5 12.5 1
Australia and the Far East 8.2 10 8.3 12
Rest of the World 31 4 2.9 5
80.6 100 66.5 100

USA sales continue to be strong, increasing by 31% against last year. Of the increase, 20% arose from continuing operations and
11% from acquisitions.

European sales increased by 48%, with continuing operations contributing $% and acquisitions contributing 39%. Qur strongest
markets in Europe continye to be Germany and France.

UK sales continue to disappoint. Acquisitions contributed £1.3m of UK sales, without which these was a shorifall of £1.9m, or 15%,
compared to last year.  This is principaily due to the poor results from our UK Publishing Services activity, althcugh UK co-edition
sales were also down.

Operating Profit
An analysis of operating profit is given below:

1996 1995

% of % of
tm Sales Em Sales

Continuing Operations
Publishing 7.47 12.0% 1.27 13.4%
Publishing Services 0.38 3.8% 0.58 4.7%
7.85 10.9% 7.85 11.8%
Acquisitions 1.30 15.7% . -
9.15 11.4% 7.85 11.8%

Publishing margins for continuing operations fell from 13.4% to 12.0% princigally because of the impact of declining margins at our
directory publisher, Broughton Hall and the impact of the “lost sales” at the end of the year due to bottlenecks in manufaciuring
which affected, in particular, our Children's co-edition publishing division.
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In the Publishing Services division our overseas activities, Regent and ProVision, performed well. The results for the division a5 a
whole were down, affected adversely by poor trading in the UK,

Acquisitions perfarmed in line with expectations.

Our opecating margins aver the last five year are set out below:

1992 : 11.0%

1993 : 11.0%

1994 : 12.0%

1995 : i1.8%

1996 : 11.4%
3. Interest

The net interest charge rose by £489,000 principally due 1o the increased debt fesulting from the acquisitions made during the year.
Interest charges were cavered 6.9 times by operating profits. This is wel! above the Group's “comfort level” of § times, and
significantly above the 2.5 times covenant given to our banks.

4. Taxation

Tax charged for the year was 24.4% compared to 24.9% last year. The Group’s tax charge benefits from tax relief on the write-off of
intangible assets in the US, low tax rates in Hong Korg and Switzerland, and the availabifity of tax losses in Australia.

The tax rates for the last five years are set out belgw:

1892 : 27.0%
1993 : 25.9%
1994 : 21.7%
1985 : 24.9%
1996 : 24.4%

5. Minority Interests

The Group has four subsidiaries in which there are minority interests. Yhe increase in the mino:ity share of profits is principatly
attributable to Design Eye Holdings Limited, ar acquisition this yeat, in which there is 2 25% mirority interest. The perfarmances of
the other three subsidiaries were all ahead of last year with Beok Sales in particular producing a strong pesformance.

6. Dividends

The recommended dividead for the year is 8.0p, a 16.3% increase over last year. The annual dividend is covered 3.3 times by
earnings per share. The dividend cover for the last five years is set out below:

1892 : 3.1 times

1993 : 3.3 times

1994 : 3.3 times

1995 : 3.4 times

1996 : 3.3 times
1. Currency

Approximately 70% of the Group’s sales are in US doilars and this curzency continues to he our ﬁrincipal operating currency. At the
beginaing of the year we had in place a natural hedge to help protect our results as far as possible from exchange rate fluctuations
with respect to the US doilar. This hedge mitigated the impact of the strength of sterling against other currancies during the last
quarter of the year, but the Group's profits for the year were adversely affected by £120,000.
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3. Cash Flow

The Group requires a high level of working capital, particularly in the core business activity of co-edition publishing. The working
capital at the balance sheet date is summarised below:

1996 1995

£ tm

Stocks and work in progress 26.5 22.3
Trade debiors 25.0 245
Trade creditors (16.8} {16.6)
Other net liabilities (1.4) (1.2)
333 29.0

Working capital as a percentage of sales for 1996 was 39.8% (based on pro-forma sales of £84.1m to refiect 2 full year for the
acquisitions) down from 43.6% last year. Some of the improvement arises because of the strength of sterling towards the end of the
vear, but the Group is atso focusing more closely on its level of working capital which it requires. A key focus in the second half of
the year was cash collections and | am pleased to report an improvement in collection periods. At 31 December 1996 trade debtors
represented 3.0 months sales {based on second half sates of £49.7m) compared to 3.7 montfis last year (based on second half sales
of £39.8m). Some of the improvement is due to the strength of sterling.

During the yeas the Group invested some £8.3m with respect to acquisitions. Overall the acquisitions performed in line with
expectations and provided a good return on our investment.

Our net borrowing at 31 December was £22.4m. Our total banking facilities at this point were £29.0m (£10.7m committed).

9. Treasury

During 1996 we decided that the Group had reached a stage of its development where we should put more dedicated resources into
the area of Treasury Management. We hired a Group Treasurer at the beginning of the current year to establish treasury policies,
strategies, and procedures. His responsibilities include cash management, banking relationships, curcancy exposure, working capitat
management, interest rate management, and treasury reporting.

10. Financial Reporting

During 1996, the Board decided to accelerate the monthly management reporting timetable. Our subsidiaries now praduce their
management accounts together with a financial commentary by the 10th of the following month. The transition, whick took place in
June, was achieved smoothly and credit should be given to the Chief Financial Officers at each subsidiary for this. The Group is
commitied to speedy reporting of financial information to assist the Chief Executives of our operating units in the effective runaing
of their businesses.

The Group has more than doubled in size over the last five years but during this same period the team of accountants at Head Ofice
has only increased from four to five. This is despite the accelerated seporting timetable and increased needs of the individual
operating units for management information. | take this opportunity to thank them for their continued loyalty, hard work and
commitment to the Group.

M J Mousley
27 February, 1997
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Company law requires the diractors to prepare financial statements for eagh financial year which give a true and fair view of the

state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss for that period. In preparing these firancizl statements. the
directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statemeats;

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis untess it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue
in Business.

The directors are responsible far maintaining proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and to enable them to ansure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985,
They have general responsibility far taking such steps as are reasonabiy open to them to safeguard the 2ssets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and otker irregularitias,

Auditor’s Report to the Members of The Quarto Group Inc.

We have audited the firancial statements on pages 41 to 60.

Respactive responsibitities of Directors and Auditors

As described ahove, the Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements, It is our responsibility to
form an independent opinior, based an our audit, on those statements and to report our opirion to you.

Basis of opinion

We have conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test hasis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also inciudes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s circumstanrces, cansistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planaed and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material missiatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity of error. (5 forming cur opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In gur opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31

December. 1996 and of the profit of the Group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985. ,9

MG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
London
27 February, 1997
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Director’s Report

The directors present their report and the audited finarcial statements of The Quarto Group Inc. for the year ended 31 December,
1996.

Principal activities and business review

The Group conducts an international business whose principal activity is the creation and marketing of high quality illustrated books
covering a wide range of topics. The Group's activilies also embrace photographic precessing. production services, silkscreen
printing, consumer magazines, informational directories, visual art books and fine art reproductions. A detailed review of the
development of the business of the Group is given in the Chairman’s Letter on pages 3 to 15,

Results and dividends

The profit for the year after taxation and minerity interests amounted to £5,377.000 (1985; £5,026,000}. The directors propose 2 final
ordinary dividead of 5.8p per share subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting, The retained profit for the year was
£3,433,000 {1995: £3,226,000) which has been transferred o reserves.

Significant changes in fixed assets
Particulars of changes in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are set out in note 7 in the financial statements.

Directors
The directors of the Company, who served as directors during the year, are as foilows:

L. F. Orbach
R. ). Morley

M. J. Mousley

G. Banks

G. T. Y. Tai

H.Geldstein (Appointed 26 Juiy, 1996}
E. de Beliaigue (Non-executive)

None of the directors has a service contract of more thar one year's duration.

No director has had a material interest in any contract of significance with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year.

spells with the Bank of Montrea and merchant bankers, Schioder Wagg. Followiag his retirement from stockbrokers Panmure Gordon,
ke joined the board of The Guarto Group Inc. 25 2 non-executive director. He js the author of “The Business of Books — the de

Directors’ interests in shares
The directors who held office at 31 December, 1996 had the following interests in the share capital of the Company.

Number of US$0.10 shares of common stock
31 December, 1996 1 January, 1996

L. F. Qrbach* 2,678,413 2,678,413
R. 1. Morley 1,300,000 1,300,000
M. J. Mousley 28,000 32,000
G. Banks 6,500 6,500
G. T. Y. Tai 10,477 10,477
£. de Bellaigue 4,875 4,875

*The shares in which L. F. Orbach is interested are owned through his family trysts.

M. 1. Mausley held 1.309 convertible cumulative redeemable sh

the end of the year.

ares of preferred stock of par value US$0.10 each at the begianing and
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Director’s Report

Directors’ interests in shares {continued)

At ] January, 1996 and 31 December, 1996 L.F.Orbach held options over 50,000 shares at an exercise price of £1.30424. The options
are exercisable between 10 Apri! 1995 and 9 April 2002.

H.Goldstein was granted options over 30,000 shares on 23 December, 1996 at an exercise price of 257.5p. The options are exercisable
hetween 23 December, 1999 and 22 December, 2006,

During the year the market price of the shares of common stock ranged between 249p and 316p. The market price at 31 December,
1996 was 257.5p.

Between 31 December. 1996 and 27 February, 1997 there have been no changes in the interests of the directors.

Substantial shareholders
As at 27 February, 1997 the directors have been advised of the foliowing shareholders who have an interest of 3% or more in the
shares of common steck of the Company:

Number of US$0.10

Shares of common stock Percentage
British Gas Pensfon Fung 760,000 4.1%
Cierical Medical [nvestmant Group 716,132 3.8%
Commercial Usion | 853,182 4.6%
Co-operative Insurance 702,945 3.8%
Equitable Life Assurance Society 1,705,000 9.2%
Herald fnvestment Trust 632,690 3.4%
Prudential Corporation Group of Companies 555,524 3.5%
Schroder Investment Management Limited 1,788,636 9.6%
Scottish Mutual 752,500 4.0%
L.F.Orbach 2,678,413 14.4%
R.J.Morley 1,300,000 7.0%

Gorporate governance

The irectors have reviewed the governance arrangements of The Quarto Group Inc. in the context of the Cadbury Committee Report
and report that the Group s in compliance with most of those paragraphs of the code which are currently applicable.The following
areas have been identified where it is not appropriate to change current practice due to the size and constitution of the Board:

) The Chairman of your Company is also Chief Executive. The Board sees no value in splitting the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive.

b} The Company has one Non-executive Director which is considered adequate in view of the overall size of the Board and the
requirements of the Company.

¢} Aformal schedule of matiers specifically reserved for the Board is not reguired since the Board forms the executive management
of the Group.

d)  The Company does aot have any formal arrangements for Directors, in the furtherance of their duties, fo take independent
professional advice.

e)  The Chairman and E. de Beliaigue fulfil the role of Remuneration Committee for Directors.

i E. de Bellaigue {Non-executive) fulfils the role of the Audit Committee.
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Going concern
The Directors, having made enquiries, consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
forseeable future, and that therefore it is appropriate to adopt the going concern hasis in preparing the financial statements.

Internal financial centroi
The board of directors has overall responsibility for the Group's system of internal financial control, The system of internal financial
control is desigred to provide reasenable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The main efements of the internal financial control system are:

a) The results of individual operating units are reported monthly and reviewed by the Board at monthly board meetings.

b) The management accounts of each operating unit are tailored to suit the business and management needs of local management.
Each operating unit has its own performance indicators and these are regularly reviewed and assessed.

¢} In addition to the monthly reporting, individual aperating units repert certain management information more frequently where it
is considered appropriate.

d) Al operating units report their bank balances twice weekly and a report is produced summerising the group position.

e) Frequent visits by the Beard and the finance department to all operating units. These visits include a review of the internal
financial control system.

The Board has reviewed the operation and effectiveness of the internal financial contro! system.

Report of the Remuseration Commitiee
_The remuneration committee sets the remunesation and other terms of employment of executive directors and reports:

a) Remuneration levels are set by reference to individua! performance, experience and market conditions with a view to providing a
package which is appropriate far the responsibilities involved.

b) Performance refated bonuses are net given,
c) Each director has a defined contribution personal pension plan.
d) No director has a service contract of more than one year's duration.

e)  Full details of directors’ remuneration and benefits are given in note 2 to the financial statements on page 49.

The remuneration committee is constituted in accordance with Section A of the Best Practice Provisions annexed to the Listing Rules
save that it does not consist exclusively of non-executive directers and its terms of reference are not fermally documented. The
remuneration committee has given full consideration to Section B of the Best Practice Provisions in framing its remuneration policy.

Taxation status
The Company was not a close company within the provisions of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 during the year nor has
there been any change since the year end.

Supplier payment pelicies

The Group agrees terms and conditions for its business transactions when arders for goods and services are placed, ensuring that
suppliers are aware of the terms of payment and including the relevant terms in contracts where appropriate, These arrangements are
adhered to when making payments, subject to the terms and conditions being met by the supplier,

Auditors
Qur auditors KPMG Audit Plc, are willing to continve in office and accordingly, & resoluticn is to be propased at the annual general
meeling for the reappointment o)f@(i Audit Plc as auditors of the Company.

H,

E. H. Bhgte
Secretary

27 February, 1997
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for

the Year Ended 31 December 1996

Turnever
Centinuing operatioas
Acquisitions

Cost of sales

Gross Profit
Distribution costs
Administration expenses
Other operating income

Gperating Profit

Coatinuing operations
Acquisitions

Share of loss of associate {acquisition)

Net interest payable and similar charges
Profit on ordinary activities hefere taxation
Tex on profit on ordinary activities

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation
Minarity interests — equity

Profit for the financial year
Dividends {including non-equity)

Retained profit
Earnings per share

Fully diluted earnings per share

Movements in reserves are shown in notes 16 to 18.

Notes

1996 1995
£000 £000
12,210 66,469
4,349 —
80,619 66,469
(50,124) (40.690)
30,495 25,7719
{2,603) (2,559)
{18,914) (15,399
168 33
$,146 7.854
1,841 7,854
1,305 —
9,146 7,854
(6} —
9,140 7,854
{1,329) {840)
1811 7,014
(1,906) (1,747}
5,905 5.267
(528) (241}
5,377 5,026
(1,944) (1,300)
3,433 3,226
26.5p 24.8p
24.6p 23.2p
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1996 1995 1996 1995
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed Assets
Tangible assets 7 7,078 6,787 — —
Investments 8 314 — 20,455 21,295
1,392 6,787 20,455 21,295
Current Assets
Stocks and work in progress 9 26,449 22.314 — —
Debtors 10 21,181 26,280 1,080 977
Investments 11 1 2 — —
Cash at bank and in hand 3,537 2,840 — —_
57,774 51,436 1,080 977
Creditors: Amounts falling due within ane year 1? {41,132) {31,364) {1,089) {977}
Net current assets 16,642 18,572 — —
Total assets less current liabilities 24,034 26,358 20,455 21,295
- Creditors: Amounts falling due after more 13 {9,201 {(6,800) _ —
than one year
Pravision for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation 14 (1,532) {1,460} ’ —_ —
Net assets 13,301 18,099 20,458 21,295
Bapital and reserves
Called up share capital 15 1,337 1,337 1,337 1,337
Reserves — Paid in surplus 16 23,805 23,795 23,805 23,795
~ Revaluation 1,018 1,018 — —
~ Profit and loss 17 14,684 11,901 (4,687) (3,837)
40,844 38,051 20,455 21,245
- Goodwili 18 (29,507} (2i,6i1) — —
Shareholders’ funds 11,337 16,440 20,455 21,295
Equity 6,133 11,236 15,251 16,061
Non-equity 5,204 5,204 5,204 5,204
11,337 16,440 20,455 21.295
Mingrity interests - equity 1,964 1,659 — -
13,30 18,099 20,455 21,295

The financial statements on pages 41 to 60 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February, 1997.

M. J. MOUSLEY

Director Nﬁ»
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Statement of Total Recognised
Gains and Losses

FoR THE YEAR Enpep 31 Decemser 1996

1996 1995

£000 £000
Profit for the financial year 5,311 5,026
Currency translation differences on foreign currency et investments (550) (75)
Total recognised gains and losses refating to the year ) 4,127 4,951
Reconciliation of movement
in shareholders’ funds
FOR THE YEAR EnDED 31 DecemBer 1956

1996 1995

£000 £000
Profit for the financial year 5,317 5,026
Dividends {1,944} {1,800)
Retained profit for the financial year 3,433 3,226
Other recognised gains and losses relating to the year (650) (75}
New share capital subscribed ' 10 295
Goodwill adjustment (arising on acquisitions) {7,896) 933
Ket movement in shareholders’ funds {5,103) 4,379
Shareholders’ funds at 31 December, 1995 16,440 12,061
Shareholders’ funds at 31 December, 1396 11,337 16,440
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31 December 1996

Net cash inflow from operating activitias

Retusrn on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received
interest paid
Interest element of hire purchase payments
Dividends paid tc shareholders
Net cash outflow from returns on investments znd servicing of finance
Taxation
UK and overseas corparation tax paid
Investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of asseciates

Purchase of businesses/subsidiaries {net of cash and cash equivaients acquired)
Sale of tangible fixed assets

Net cash outflow from investing activities
Net cash eutflow hefore financing

Financing

tssue of shares
Net repayment of other financing

Capital etement of hire purchase payments

Cash (outflow) inflow from financing
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

See note 21 for an analysis of certain of the items included above.

1396 19588
£600 £009
3,354 3,
250 85
(1,ae1) (893)
(18) (61)
(1,842) {1.614)
(3,171} (2,483)
an (1,030}
{1,265) (1,528)
(872) -
(6,680} (14}
226 104
(8,591) (1,438)
(8,325) (1,040}
an (295)
(3,799) {1,979)
342 310
(3.467) (1,964)
(5,838) 924
(9,325) (1,040
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Accounting Policies

The significant accounting palicies that have been adopted in the financial statements, which are presented undér the historical cost
basis of accounting, as modified by the revaluation of freehold property, are as set cut below and comply with applicable accounting
standacds. The Company is an “oversea company” within the meaning of the Companies Act 1985. However, the Company has not
taken advantage of the available exemptions and the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
disclesure requirements of the Companies Act 1985,

Adoption of new accounting standard

These financial statements comply with the new accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board: FRS 8 - Related
parly disclosures. The objective of FRS 8 is {o ensure that financial statements coatain the disclosuses necessary to draw atiention
to the possibility that the reported financial position and results may have been affected by the exsistence of related parties and by
material fransactions between them.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financiat statements represent a consolidation of the zudited accounts of The Quarte Group Inc. and its subsidiaries
ali of which have been made up to 31 December.

The results of subsidiaries acquired dusing the vear are included from the date on which control passes. Cn the acquisition of 2
business, fair values, reflecting conditions at the date of acquisition, are attribuled to the net tangible assets. Where the cost of
acquisition exceeds the values attributable to the Group's share of such net assets, the difference is treated as purchased goodwill
and is written off directly to reserves in the year of acquisiticn. Reorganisation 2nd integration costs resulting from the acquisition
are charged to the profit and loss account. The profit or loss on the disposal or discontinuation of 8 previously acquired business is
calculated taking account of the attributable amount of purchased goodwill relating to that business.

In accordance with the examptions allowed by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company has not presented its own prafit
and loss account.

Foreign currency

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are transfated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the respective balance sheet
dates. Profit and loss accounts in foreign currencies are translated at average rates for the respective accounting periods. Exchange
differences arising on the translation ef the net assets and profit and loss accounts of non-UK companies togethes with excharge
differences on related borrowings are accounted for through reserves. All other exchange differences are recarded as ordinary trading
tems,

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value of fixed assets by annual instalments over their
estimated economic lives at the following annual rates:

Long leaseheld 1 2% straight line

Shozt leaseholds : over the period of the lease
Plant, equipment and motor vehicles : 10-25% straight line
Fixtures andg fittings : 15-20% straight line

Mo depreciation is provided on freehold properties because the directors censider that the lives of these properties and their residuai
vzlues (determined at the time of acquisition or subsequent vaiuation} are such that their depreciation is not material. Any
permanent diminutien in the carrying value of fixed assets is charged against the grofit and loss account.
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Investments in associates

An associated undertaking (associate) is one in which the group has a long term eguity interest, usvally from 20% 1o 50%, and over
which it exercises significant influence. The Group’s share of the profits less losses of associates is included in the consolidated
profit and loss account and its interest in their net assets, other than goodwill, is inciuded in investments in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Stocks and werk in progress

Stocks and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost, including an apprepriate postion of overheads, and net realisable value.
Production costs (excluding uait print costs), including an appropriate partion of overheads, in respect of 2 book are written off gver
its estimated economic life (not more than three years) commencing from the date of first printing and are disclosed in the financial
statements as work in progress.

Deferred taxation

Provisian is made, using the liability method, for deferred taxation on ali material timing differences which are expected to
crystallise.

Turnover
Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods and services supplied to third parties excluding Value Added Tax.

Copyrights
Predominately the Group owns the copyright in its titles. No value is attributed to these rights.

tease and hire purchase contracis

Where assets are acquired by finance leases (including hize purchase contracts) the amount representing the outright purchase price
of such assets is included in tangible fixed assets. Depreciation is provided in accordance with the accounting policy above. The
capital element of future finance lease payments is inciuded in creditors and the interest element is charged to the profit and loss
account over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital element outstarding. Expendifure on operating leases is charged to
the profit and loss account in the period to which it refates.

Pensions

Substantially all of the Group's pension costs relate to individual pension plans and are charged to the profit and lass account as
they arise.”




Notes to the Financial Statements

1996 1995
£000 £0G0
1 Segmental analysis
Geographical analysis of turnover by destination
United Kingdom 11,909 12,438
United States of America 45,269 34,615
Canada 1,070 1,341
Eurgpe 12,152 8,225
Australasia and the Far East 8,169 8,286
Rest of the Wori¢ 2,050 1,560
80,519 66,469
PROFIT NET OPERATING
TURHOVER BEFDRE TAX ASSEFS
1936 1895 1996 1995 1996 1995
£000 £000 £000 £400 £000 £000
€lass of business
Publishing . 70,588 54,099 8,770 7,270 36,088 30,787
Publishing services 10,931 12,370 376 584 3.645 3,39
80,614 66,469 9,146 7,854 39,733 34,177
—— — ———— ———
Share of loss of associate {6) —
Net interest payable {1,329) (840)
1,811 7,014

The group interest expense s arranged centrally and is not attributable to individual activities or

Analysis by geographical area of origin

geographical areas,

HET OPERATING

TURNOVER OPERATING PROFIT ASSETS
1996 1955 1996 1395 1995 1995
EBDD £000 £000 £000 £0GD £000
Unjted Kingdom 30,052 22,332 3,217 3.053 10,471 12,159
United States of America 38,111 30,545 4,769 3,376 23,426 15,671
Other 12,446 13,591 1,160 1,425 5,836 6,347
80,619 56,469 9,146 7,854 39,733 34,177

“Other” is nat analysed further because the directors consider that sech disclosure would be prejudicial to the interests of the

Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1996 1995
£008 £000
1 Segmental analysis (continued)
The net operating assets can be reconciled to the consolidated balance sheet as follows:
Net operating assets 39,733 34,177
Total bank loans and other borrowings (25,981) (15,331
Cash &t bank and in hand 3,537 2,840
Corporation tax, deferred tax and advance corporation tax (2,812) (2.604)
Dividends payable (1,178) (977)
Net assets 13,301 18.09%
2 Operating profit
Operating prefit is stated after charging
Depreciation 1,060 892
Auditers’ remyneration: audit 204 181
: other 11 15
Operating lease rentals in respect of:
Plant and machinery 24 24
Other assets 170 845

Uperating profit is stated after charging the folfowing amounts with respect to acquisitions: cost of sales £5,41,600, distribution
expenses £78,000, administration expenses £1,550,000, and other operating income £3,000.

01 the profit for the year £1,094,000 (1995: £1.800,000) has been dealt with in the accounts of the Company.

The Grovp's share of the resulis of associates reflects its percentage of the associates result before 1ax. There was no taxation in the
current year,

Emgloyees
Stafi costs including directors' emoluments comprise:
Wages and salaries 11,933 10,769
Social security costs 598 942
Pension costs 282 135
13,211 11,846
1998 1995
Rumber Number
The average weekly number of persons employed by the group during
he year was:
Publishing 388 329
Publishing services 132 169
Group administration 16 ib
536 514
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Bperating profit (continued)
Directors’ remuneration

Emoluments:
Fee to non-executive director
Execulive directors — remuneration including benefits in kind in respect of
motor vehicles and health insurance
- pension contributions

The directers’ remuneration disclosed above included the following amounts paid in

respect of the Chairman who is also the highest paid director

Remuneratior
Pensioa contributions

The number of directors who received emoluments (excluding pension contributions}

in the following ranges were:

£10,001-£15,000
£55,001-£69,000
£60,001-£65.000
£65,001-£70,000
£70,001-£75,000
£80,001-£85,000
£95,001-£100.000
£100,001-£105,000
£115,001-£120,000
£135,001-£140,000
£150,001-£155,000
£175,001-£180.000

1896 1995
£000 £000
13 13
§47 549
52 3l
112 543
117 151
23 15
200 156
1998 1995
Number Number
1 1
— 1
1 J—

1 1
— 1
— 1
1 —

1 J—

] ——
— 1
1 —

Details of directors’ share options are given in the directors' report. During the vear L.F.Orbach and R.J.Morley maintained current
accounts with the company. The balance on these accounts was less than £5,000 throughout the year.

The remuneration of the executive directors was as foilows:

SALARY/ * PENSION 1995 1995

FEES BENEFITS COKTRIBUTION TOTAL ToTAL

£000 £000 £000 £a00 £000

L.F.Orbach 155 22 23 200 166
R.).Morley 116 21 15 152 122
M.J.Mousley 85 11 11 107 87
G.Banks 65 5 3 13 72
G.Y.7ai 104 — — 104 7
H. Goldstein 63 — — 63 —
A.Slavin — — — — 56
588 59 52 699 580

*The Company's palicy with regard ta the provision of company cars to directors and employees was changed oa 1 fanuasy 1997,
Company cars are now only provided to directors and employees who use them for more than 7,000 business miles a year, The salaries
of directors and employees who ro longer receive a car have been appropriately adjusted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1996 1995
£860 £000
3 MNetinterest payahle and similar charges
Interest payable:
On bank overdrafis and other loans repayable within 5 years by instalmentis 1,472 854
On ioans repayable after more than 5 years 36 32
Hire purchase 78 §1
1,586 947
Interest receivable {257) (107}
1,329 840
4 Taxation
On profit fer the year:
United Kingdom corporation tax at 33% 925 979
Defarred taxation — UK 44 49
- Owverseas 778 358
Overseas tax 159 350
1,906 1,747
The Group’s low taxation charge reflects the benefit of tax relief on the write-off of intangibie assets
in the US, low tax rates in Hong Kong and Switzerland ard the availability of tax losses in Australia.
5 Dividends
Equity: Ordinary: Interim paid of 2.2p per share
{1995: 2.0p per share) 409 368
; Ordinary: Final proposed of 5.8p per share
(1995: 5.25p per share) 1,086 97
Nan-equity: Preference 455 455
1,944 1.800

6 Earnings per share

The czleulation of earnings per share is based on 18,608,639 shares (1905- 18,449,245) and earnings, after minority interests of

£4,822.000 {1995: £4,571,000),

Fully diluted earnings per share allow for the convarsion of preference shares and the exercise of all outstanding options and are

caleutated on adjusted earnings of £5,401,000 (1995: £5,647,000) and 21,968,053 shares (1995: 21,786,859).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Tangible fixed assets
Group

Cost or valuation:

At 1 January, 1996
Exchange differences
Subsidiaries acquired
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December, 1996

Depreciation:

At 1 January, 1996
Exchanga ditferences
Subsidiaries acquired
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 Cecember, 1995

Net book value:
At 31 December, 1996
At 31 Dacember, 1995

Cost or valuation at 31 December, 1996 is represented by:

Surplus on valuation
Cost

PLANT

EQUIPMENT FIXTURES

FREEHOLD LEASEHOLD AND MOTOR AND
PROPERTY PROPERTY VERICLES FITINGS TETAL
£0C0 £600 £000 £000 £000
3,084 787 5,346 851 10,078
(191} (49) (215 (91} (546)
— 52 429 — 491
218 38 1.088 181 1,53%
- — (669) (96} (765)
3,111 838 5,983 855 10,793
31 158 2,546 556 3,291
— (13 (115) (74) (202
— 11 135 — 146
2 62 884 112 1,060
- - (436) (84) (580)
33 218 2,954 510 3,715
3,078 620 3,035 345 1,078
3,053 629 2.800 305 6,787
1,018 - — — 1,618
2,093 838 5,989 855 8,715
3111 838 5,989 855 16,783

The net boak value of plant, equipment and mator vehicles included £1,025,000 {1995: £1,116,000) in respect of assets held ender
hire purchase contracts. The depreciation charged on these assets during the year was £265,000 (1995: £252,000).

Included in leasehold property at cost is £331,000 (1995: £364,000) in respect of a long leasehold property. The nat book value at 31
December, 1996 was £305,000 (155: £343.000). The principal freehold property in the UK, with an historic cost of £382,000, was

revalued on the basis of an open market value, as defined by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors, for existing use at 31

December. 1989 by Conway Kersh, Professional Valuers. The valuation was £1.7 million but the directors ascribed a value of £1.4

million,
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8 Fixed asset investmants

At 1 Janyary, 1996

Share of retained profitsfadditions

Exchange difference
At 31 December, 1396

Additions to investments in associates of £352,000 comprises cost of shares, |
the Group’s share of post acquisition losses of £6,000. The Company has the
{*Directly held by the Quarto Group Inc.), all of which operate principally in t

IHVESTMENT SHARES
I¥ ASSOCIATE AT COST LDAKS To7AL
£000 £ooo £080 £000
- 4,551 16,744 21,295
352 4,295 {5,133) (840)
(38) - - -
314 8,846 11,609 20,458

ess goodwill written off on acquisition of £857,600 less
following principa) trading subsidiaries and associates
heir country of incorporation.

Name Place znd date !ssued and fully Percentage Business
of incorporation paid share capital held

Quarto Pubiishing ple England 100,000 shares of £1 each 100% Publishing
1 April, 1976

Quarte Inc. Delaware, USA 50 shares of no par value 100* Publisking
16 QOctober, 1986

Western Screen and Sign England 1,500 shares of £1 each 100* Publishing

Limited 24 November, 1961 Services

Quarto Magazines England 1,000 shares of £1 each 100 Publishing

Limited 20 May, 1986

Regent Publishing Hong Kong 1,000 shares of HK$10 each 70 Publishing

Services Limited 23 October, 1985 Services

Apple Press Limited Englznd 100 shares of £1 each 100 Pubtishing
5 June, 1984

Quarto Australia Pty Ltd. Australia 8 redeemable preference 100* Publishing
14 September, 1581 shares of A$! each and 103

ardinary shares of A$? each
AP Screenprinters Limited England 1,000 shares of £1 each 160 Publishing
. 30 September, 1980 Services

RotoYision S.A. Switzerland 1,500 shares of SFr500 each 100* Publishing
18 July, 1977

Broughton Hall Inc. Delaware, USA 100 shares of US$1 each 100 Publishing
16 March, 1989

Rackport Publishers Inc. Massachusetts, USA 4,000 shares of no par value 100 Publishing
4 December, 1985

Book Sales Inc, Delaware, USA 85 shares of no par value 80 Publishing
13 December, 1972

The Atias Image Factory England 43,004 shares of £1 each 100 Publishing

Limited 4 May, 1972 Services

Quarto Children's England 2 shares of £1 each 106 Publishing

Books Limited 6 January, 1976

Scafa-Tornabene Art Delaware, USA 1,210 shares of no 100 Publishing

Publishing Co., Inc. 29 June, 1987 par value

Packaged Goods New York, USA 100 shares of no 80 Publishing

Incorporated 8 October, 1992 par value

Pro-Vison Singapore 7.502 shares of 100 Publisking

Pte Ltd. 11 June, 1950 $$1 each Sarvices

Front Lire Delaware, YSA 1,000 shares of iS$1 each 100 Publishing

Graphics, Iac. 29 April, 1994

Walter Foster Delaware, USA 15,625 shares of 100 Pudtishing

Publishing, Inc 18 febryary, 1988 US$0.01 each

Design Eve Holdings England 200 shares of 75* Publishing

Limited 22 June, 1992 £1 each

Boulder Interactive Colorado, USA 5,740 shares of 30 Publishing

Group Inc

3 fune, 1994

no par value
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1996 1995
£oeo £000
9 Stocks and work in progress
Finished goods 13,484 11,911
Work in pregress 12,729 10,269
Raw materials : 554 481
Less: Payments on account {319} (327
26,449 22,314
10 Debiors
Trade debtors 25,045 24,528
Amounts due from subsidigries — —
Prepayments and accrued income 1,632 957
Other debters 289 241
Corporation tax and advance corporation tax recaverable 821 554
27,187 26,280

Other debtors include a toan’of HK$300,000 (£23,000) (1895: HK$402,000 (£33,000)) to G, T. Y,

Group receives a commercial rata of interest on this foan.

11 Current asset investmenis

Listed investments at cost (market value £1,000)

(1995: £2.000}) Listed other than on The

International Stock Exchange ia London 1

2
12 Creditors: Amounts falling due within ene year

Bank overdrafts 14,568 8,363
Current toan instalments 2,1 1,37
Hire purchase creditors 376 389
Total borrowings 11,135 10,123
Trade creditors 16,781 16,659

Other ¢reditors including taxation and social security:
Corporation tax 1,648 1,305
Advance corporation tax payable 453 393
Dividend payable 1,080 977
Dividend payable to minority sharehalders %6 —-
Soeizl security 89 142
Other creditors 1,364 705
Accruals and deferred income 1,906 1,560
41,132 31,864

e i e nE
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19896 1993
£000 £000
1,080 977
1,080 977

Tai, a director of the Company. The
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L cour [ ongony |

1996 1995 1996 1995
£000 £000 £060 £000
13 Creditors: Amounts {alling due after more
than one year
Bank and other loans 7,955 4,844 — —
Hire purchase liabilities 311 370 — —_
Total borrowings 8,266 5,214 - —
Other creditors 935 1,586 — —_
9,201 6,800 — ﬁ

Other craditors include a provision of £772,000 {1995: £1,389.000) being the estimated deferred consideration payable in connection
with the acquisitian of Scafa-Tornabene. .

Total borrowings are repayable as follows:
Bank loans and overdrafts:

in one year or less, or oa demand 11,339 9,734 -— —
Between one and two years 1,214 1,050 — —
Between two and five years 6,108 2,386 — —
In five years or more 632 1,408 — —

25,294 14,578 — —

Other borrowings {hire purchase liabilities):

in one year or less, or on demand 316 389 — —
Between one and two years 2N 274 — —
Between two and five years 40 96 — —

687 759 — —

Total loans and other borrowings:

In one year or less, or on demand 17,115 10,123 — —
Between one and two years 1,485 1,324 — —
Between two and five years 6,149 2,482 — —
In five years or more 532 1,408 — —

25,881 15,337 — —

The above borrowings carry interest at commercial rates ranging frem 5.25% to 8.5%. The total amount repayable in five years or
more comprises £373,000, with respect to bank leans repayable other thar by instalments secured on freehold premises and £259.000
with respect to a bank loan repayable by instalments secored on freehold premises.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AMDUKT POTENTIAL

PROVIDED LIABILITY

1996 1995 14996 1995

£009 £000 £000 £000
14 Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation provided in the financial
statements is as follows:
Excess of capital allowances over depreciation 170 181 170 181
Other-UK (134} {200 (134) {200)
Other-gverseas 1,496 1,479 1,660 1,733
Revaluation of freehold property — — 336 336

1,532 1,460 2,032 2,050
The movement on the provision for deferred taxation is as follows:

GROUP
£000

Provision at 1 January, 1996 1,460
Exchange difference ' {376)
Acquisitions {374)
Transfer to profit and loss account 822
Provision at 31 December, 1996 1,532

15 Share capital

Authorised:

28,000,000 (1995: 28,000,000) shares of common stock of par vaive US$0.10 each {“shares of common stock™) with an aggregate
nominat value of US$2,800,000 (1595 US$2,800,000).

5.212,587 (1995:5,212,587) 8.75p {net} convertible cumulative redeemable shares of preferred stock of US$0.10 each (“shares of
preferred stock”} with an aggregate nominal value of US$521,588 (1995:U5$521,588).

1996 1995
£000 £000

Equity share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid:

18,615,306 shares of common stock of par value US$0.10 each

(1995: 18,607, 306) 1,058 1,059
Non-equity share capital

Altotted, called up and fully paid:

5,204,024 shares of preferred stock of US$0.10 each

(1995: 5,204,024) 278 278

1,337 1.337
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Notes to the Financial Statements

15 Share Gapital (continved)
On 8 October, 1996, 8,000 shares of comman stock were issued following the exercise of options under the Company's Executive Share
Option Scheme.

At 31 December, 1996, the following options over shares of common stock were cutstanding under The Quarto Group Ine.
Execufive Share Option Schemes.

Number of Shares Date exercisable Options price per share
20,000 16 November, 1990 — 15 November, 1597 £1.51368
16,000 12 April, 1992 ~ L1 April, 1999 £1.73264
15,000 14 November, 1992 - 13 November, 1999 £1.5232
80,000 10 Aprit, 1995 — 9 April, 2002 £1.30424
76,000 26 Octaber, 1996 — 25 October, 2003 £2.82
30,000 23 December, 1999 — 22 December, 2006 £2.575

The shares of preferred stock are convertibie inte shases of common stock on 1 June, 1990 and aanually thereaiter at a rate of 60
shares of commaon steck for every 100 shares of preferred stock. The Company may at any time purchase shares of preferred stock in
accordance with the rights attaching to such shares. The Company is obliged to redeem ali outstanding shares of preferred stock in
2005 at a price of £1. The holders of the preferred stock are not entitled to vote at any meeting of shareholders unless their dividend
payment is more than six months averdue or the meeting is being held to consider a resolution for liquidation, dissolution, winding up
or the appointment of a receiver. On liquidation, dissolution or ather winding up the hoiders of the preferred stock are entitled to be
paid out of the available assets of the Company the sum of £1 per share and the amount of ail accrued dividends payable in priority
to any payment being made to the holders of common stock.

1996 1995 1996 1995
£060 £000 £000 £000
16 Reserves — paid in surplus
At 1 January, 1996 23,7195 23,513 23,795 23,513
On shares issued during year:
Exercise of share oplions 0 282 10 282
At 31 December, 1986 23,805 23,795 23,808 23,795
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1996 1995 1998 1995
£060 £400 £000 £000
17 Reserves - profit and loss account
At 1 Janvary, 1996 11,801 8,750 (3,837) (3.837)
Retained profit 3,433 3,226 {830} —
Difference or transfatien of net assets and profit
and loss accounts of non-UK companies {650) {75} — —
At 31 December, 1996 14,684 11,901 (4,687) (3.837)

1996 1995
£000 £000

18 Reserves — goodwiil
At 1 January, 1996 21,611 22,544
Goodwill arising on acquisitions - businesses/subsidiaries 1,441 -
© - associate 857 -
Goodwill adjustment (402) {433)
At 31 December, 1996 29,507 21,611

The acquisitions Design Eye Holdings Limited, Walter Foster Publishing, Inc, Boulder Interactive Group Inc and other businesses were
acceunted for using the acquisition method of accounting as set out in notes 8 and 21.

The goodwill adjustment relates to a re-appraisal of defesred consideration in relation to a prior year acquisition.
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LAND AKD LAND AND
BUILDINGS OTHER BUILDINGS DTRER
1986 1996 1995 1985
£000 £oo0 £000 £000
19 Financial commitments
At 31 December, 1996, the Group had commitments
to make payments under operating leases during
the next year as foliews for leases expiring:
Within one year 144 25 95 6
Between two and five years 582 111 409 61
Over five vears 192 — 403 —
1,018 136 9¢7 67

The land and buildings leases are subject 1o rent reviews.

20 Contingent commitments and liabilities

On 14 September, 1993, the Group acquired Scafa-Tornabene Inc. (*Scafa™). The acquisiticn agreement pravides that a further
payment in respect of the acquisiticn may be made on 30 September, 1998 calcilated by reference o a formula based on 2 multiple
of five times the average operating profit of Scafa for the three financial years compleied prior 1o the date of payment &nd takes into
account levels of debt within Scafs. The vendors may efect to receive a payment of two thirds of the deferred consideration in 1997 by
applying the formula to the relevant years. The directers have provided for deferred consideration of US$1,320,000 (1995: $2.167,000)
in these financial statements. The maximum potential fability is US$6,500,000,

On 28 February, 1996, the Group acquired Walter Foster Publishing inc. Of the purchase price, US$966,242 was settled by the issue of
promissory notes. The principal value of the promissory notes is adjustable upwards to seflect the increase, if any, in the value (in US
dallars) of The Quarto Group Inc's common stock over US$3.83. As at 27 February, 1997 the vafue of the common stock was US$3.71
and accordingly no zdjustment has been made in these financial statements.

The vendors of Book Sales inc. have an option, exercisable at any time after 31 October, 1996 to require Quasto Inc. to purchase their
remaining minority shareholdirg in Book Sales Inc.. This price is based on the shareholders investment in Book Sales Inc., adjusted
for subsequeni earaings. At 31 December, 1996 the potential liability, based on Book $ales Inc.'s finarcial statements, amounted to
US$$1,652,000. This has not been provided for since the minority shareholders have not exercised their option. At 3] December, 1996
the minority interest in Boak Sales Inc. in the consolidated financial statements of The Quarte Group Inc. amounted o US$934.000.

The Quarto Group Inc. has issved guarantees in respect of £14,568,000 of overdrafts of subsiciaries (1995: £8,363.000) and bank
loans of £9,352,000 (1595: £5,732,000).

There are other contingent liabilities, arising in the ordinary course of business, in respect of litigation, which the directors befieve
will not have a significant effect on the financial position of the Group.
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21 Notes on the consolidated cash flow statement 1996 1895
£000 £000
{a) RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFET TO NEY CASH INFLOWS FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating profit 5,146 7.854
Depreciation charge 1,060 892
Loss/(Prefit) an sale of fixed assets {41) 1
(Increase} in stocks and work in progress {4,861) {3,936}
{Increase) in debtors (690} (4,447}
Increase {decrease) in creditors {1,260} 3,547
HNet cash inflow from operating activities 3,354 3.911

Certain movements in assets and liabilities disclosed above differ from the movements shown by the consolidated balance sheet
as a sesult of foreign exchange differences and accruals and prepayments,

SHARE CAPITAL/PREMIUM OTHER FINANGING
1996 1995 1996 1995
B £000 £000 £000 £000
(b} CHANGES [N FINANCING -
Balance ai 1 January, 1996 25,132 24,837 8,560 1.504
Acquisitions — — 765 (1.124)
New hire purchase contracts — — 270 403
Exchange difference 7 — — {(704) 198
Net cash inflow/(outflow} from financing 19 295 3,457 1,669
Balance at 31 December, 1996 25,142 25,132 12,348 8,560
Other financing comprises creditors due aiter more than ane year together with hire purchase obiigations of £376,000 {1995:
£329,000) and loan instalments of £2,771,000 (1955: £1,371,000) included in creditors due in less than one year.
1996 1995
£000 £000
(€) CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EGUIVALENTS:
Net cash {overdraft) at 1 January. 1396 (5,523) {6,309)
Exchange difference 350 {138)
Ket cash inflow (outflow) {5,858) 924
Net cash (overdrait) at 31 December, 1996 {11,031) (5,523)
Cash and cash equivalents comprises:
Cash at bank and in hand 3,537 2,840
Bank overdraits, (14,568) (8,363}
(11,031) (5,523)
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(d) PURCHASE OF BUSIKESSES/SUBSIDIARIES

{i) Design Eye Holdings Limited.

Fixed assets

Stocks and work in progress
Debtors

Cash

Creditors falling due in less than one year
Creditors falling due ir more than one year

Deferred {axation
Minority interests

Cost of investment
- Gash
- — Deferred consideration

Goodwilt

800K ACCOUNTING EAIR VALUE FAIR
VALUE POLICY ADJUSTMENTS VALUE
ADBJUSTMENTS

£000 £000 £aoo £000
247 — — 247
588 {50) — 538
1,460 — — 1,460
809 — — 809
(2,770 — (10) (2,787)
(93) — — (93)
— 17 3 20
(59) 8 2 49
175 (25) {5) 145
13,970)

{262)

(4,087

Design Eye Holdings Limited made a consolidated profit after tax of £234,000 in the period from 1 December, 1995 to 12 June, 1896 and a profit after

tax of £241,000 for the year ended 30 November, 1935

{fi) Walter Foster Publishing, Inc.

Fixed assets

Stocks and work in progress
Debtors

Cash

Creditors falling due in less than one year
Creditors falling due in more than one year

Deferred taxation

Cost of investment
— Promissory notes
— Cash

Goodwill

BOOK ACGOUNTING FAIR VALUE FAIR
VALUE pOLICY AMJUSTMENTS VALUE
ABJUSTMERTS
£000 £060 £eoa £o00
98 — — 98
1,510 {452) (364) 694
625 — (3) 620
(793) — - (793)
(628) — (301} (929)
(41) — - (41}
30 153 71 354
801 (299) (499) 3
{631)
(2,726)
(3,354)

Walter Foster Publishing, Inc. made a loss after tax of £112,000 in the periad from 1 January, 1996 to 28 February, 1996 and a profit after tax of £64,000

in the year ended 31 December, 1995.

The cash outflow in sespect of the purchase of businesses / subsidiaries consists of cash paid of £6,696,000 disclosed above less

cash and cash equivalents acquired of £16,000.
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Historical Cost Five-Year Summary

Profit and loss account

Turnover

Dperating prafit before exceptional charges
Het interest

Profit before exceptional charges and taxation

Exceptional charges

Aborted acquisition
Sale of operations

Profit on ordinary activities
hefore taxation
Taxation

Profit on ordinary activities
after taxatien
Minarity interests

Profit for the firancial year
Dividends
Retained profit

Earnings per share

Betore exceptional charges
After exceptional charges

Dividends per share

Farnings per share have been adjusted to reflect the boaus element of the share issue in 1993.

Balance sheet
Fixed assets

Other net assets

Net borrowings

Cash flow

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Interest (net) and dividends

Taxation

Capital expenditere (net}

Acquisition and disposal of businesses and
investments (net)

Net cash {outflow) inflow hefore financing

Quarto
Annual Report

1996

1992 1993 15%4 1995 1996
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
39,387 49,590 57,927 66.469 80,619
4,249 5.441 6,949 7.854 9,140
{376) 421y (669) (840) {1,329)
3.973 5,020 6,280 7.014 181
(160) — — — —
(391 - — — —
3,422 5,020 6,280 7.014 7811
923) {1,361 {L,741) {1,747) (1,908)
2,499 3,719 4,539 5.267 5,905
(132) (224) (258) (241) (528)
2.367 3.495 4,281 5026 5,371
(1,189) (1467 (1,614) (1,800} {1,944)
1,178 2,028 2,567 3.226 3,433
16.4p 19.7p 20.8p 24.80 26.5p
13.2p 19.7p 20.8p 24.8p 26.5p
5.37p 6.0p 6.3p 7.25p 8.6p

4,037 4,908 5,736 6,787 1,392
11,552 13,702 19.41% 23,743 28,330
15,589 18,610 25,151 30,530 35,722
{1,376) {(3.919) (11,684) (12,431)  (22,421)
8,213 14,695 13,467 18.099 13,301
2,515 2,268 1,545 391 3,354

(1,560 (1,719 (2,192} {2,483} (3171}
(1,152} (721} (769} (1,030 {917}
315 (878) (851) (1,424) (1,039)
200 (3.013) {3,813) (14) {1,552}
{312 {4,063) (6,090) {1,040) (9,323}
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